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On= of our stzated objectives when we first formed our associ-~

s to hold an annual field trip (pilgrimage) to some
roint of Juzker hiztorical interest. Canadian Yearly lieeting had
besun = onaw policy of holdingz Yearly Meeting in different parts of
the country with the locale in 1970 out in Saskztoon, Saskatchewan.
rraviousiy for many yeesrs, it was held in/?fckering College,Newmarket.

o

S

gut of this hus dev;lsyed our policy of studying the area in which

o ind ourcelves ol Yearly Meeting time. The Jest and the Maritimes

: nistoric sites near enough for a half days' bus

so o sreciel prozrazm has been produced in those cases, and z
kxen in Ontario in June. There is no worry about running

tes in Ontario.

So far we have hud hicstorical bus trips in the Niagara Penin-

73, Rockwood in 1974, Norwich in 1975, Sparta/Coldstream

4 this year 1977, Fickering/Uxbridze area. At Memramcook

College, at 3t Joserh's W.B.,Rzlph Greene spoke to us on "Zarly
juckers in the Jaritimes, and set up a beautiful display. In 1975,

in Bdmonton, Lurgaret licGruther set up a fine display on "Early
wuzazkers in Alberita”™ and we learned a lot about archives in a tour
'Back stuge 2t the Archives' when Alan Ridge, the Frovincial Arch1-‘
vist guve us a2 zuided tour of the alberta Provincial &rchives. The
rrowly restered ¥o6nge Street lieeting House was a happy scene of our
annuul meeting November 29, 1975, when David Newlands spoke to us
zbout the restoration, after which we drove through the snow in cars
Sovm o the nearby burial ground and site-of the/H{bksite Yonge
2ot jeeting House and then over to/Pfhe,Orchard (Whitchurch)
fweeting now a/Mﬁion Church. .

This year, the roturn to Pickéring Ceollege has provided the
orportunity of visi*in; old Quaker Meeting Houses or sites, origi-

nully Irepurative Uoetings under Yonge Street, lying east of Yonge
sireet, and of seeing the present Pickering College as well as the

cite and what remuined wfter the fire of 1905 of its predecessor in
Pickering. Ve wish woe had time to visit Mariposa to the north east
and Tzeumsoh o the nor*h wast but they can be enjoyed another time.
Thiz lwsue then, srovides vou with the background material for our

vickering/Uxbridge triy Thursday,isugust 18,1977. an article by
Sathleen Hertzhors on fno/ﬂﬁbrldﬂe lieeting House appeared in our
Newslattar J2, lay 1973,
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PICKEHING,E6iLEGE -~ A CULKER SCHOOL: AN OVERVIEW AND HISTORY
: — e,
by Jane V, Zavitz

Caﬁadian Yearly Meeting will be held at Pickering College, Newmarket,
Ontario, from August 14-21, 1977, This year is the fiftieth anniversary of
the 1927 re-cpening of the school at Newmarket, and also the beginning of the
last year of Harry M. Beer's headmastership after a full lifetime of association,
with and service to, Pickering College., It seemed rightifor vearly meeting to
gather at Pickering this summer, where it has met often in previous years, to

mark these two events.

From the beginnings of Quakerism in the seventeenth century education has
been an important concern of the Society of Friends. Canada was no exception.
Tne forerunners of the present Pickering College have been on three s¥;esz
first, at West Lake in Prince Edward County, Ontario, on the 'old Danforth
Road' four miles west of Picton and one mile east of Blocmfield; from
1841/2 to 1869; second, from 1878-1885, and from 1892~1905 east of Toronto
in Pickering Village (Pickering Township) at number 104 XKingston Road East,
Just west and across from the yearly/ﬁ:etinghouse (now a/mgéonic hall) at the
corner of Kingston Road and Mill Streetg and, third at its present Newmarket
site in Whitchurch Township, originally south and sast of the town, which
has now built up to the property lines except where cushioned by the
beautiful 200 acre schocl farm, from 1909 to.1916 and from 1927 on, continuing

3

ae a boys? school in the present.

Several concurrent factors united to bring tha,ﬂ%;t Lake School into
veing. The pioneer stages of settlement were accomplished sufficisntly to

create Friends' desires for a secondary school. Only a few could go to the

# Jane V, Zavitz is presently on the staff of Pickering College as a teacher and
librarian,
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distant /Ui/ne Partners School in Dutchess County, New York, After 1835

‘yQQ York Yearly Meeting (Orth.) sent extracts from its sessions, requesting
that member meetings consider setting up schools for older youth 'and report'
results of discussion, During this period Joseph John Gurney, the eminaﬁt
Inplish Friend, traveled among Friends in the mid-western United States and
Upper Canada, with his deep concern that they establish schools. He spoke
to Friends at £anada Half-Yearly Meeting at Yonge Street (Orth.) in 1839,
and through his initial gift of funds the dream began to be possible. Others
gave, and thus the West Lake coeducational boarding school came about. The
girls! school opened in 1841 in the large red brick farmhouse; the boys!
school began the next year after their frame facility was built to the rear.
In reality they were virtually separate institutions on one site. fl;l"mﬂtc
Clarke was superintendent, Today an Ontario Histqriggl Marker “Friends
Seminary" stands near the road before tﬁe brick farmhouse; the frame structure

was long ago removed.

By 1854 Weét Lake was flourishing as an institution, It was free
of debt, with one hundred and ten pupils enrolledié‘forty—sevenrgirls and
sixty three boys, However, by 1869 the achool cléégd and the property was
sold., The second separation in the or%hpdax‘branﬁh ‘of the society waes brewing
and had weakened support for the achool, timca ia general and with them the
type of education desired were changing., Gbupctitinn also came from the new
acadeny at Hdckwood, Ontaris, which Wﬂtﬂqrald esttbli.&h@d

In the confederation year of 1867./533341 Yearly Meeting had heoh set
off from New York Yearly Meeting (Orth,) m neaw ca;panded yearly lhct.ing house
in Pickering Village soon made that cmmity attw:tin a8 a supportive cunire
for a Friends School. In 1870 the yegrly mco:ing,ualmctod a hilltop site tor

the school across from the vearly meeting property on land originally grm(i
to Timothy Rogers. Y6nge Street and Pelham Quarterly Mestings provided studenta,
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non-¥friends were also permitted to enroll, The four-story brick building
to accomodate 100 students was built for $30,000, collections coming from
North American and British Friends. Samuel Rogers travelled to collect

these funds.

Pickering College opened in September 1878, and was just well underway
when the/yiiberite, conservative group withdrew from Canada Yearly Mesting (Orth.)
in 1881, This second separation weakened the support needed by the school;
it closed in 1885, Determined that the school continue, Samuel Rogers and
John Harris travelled among British Friends again to collect funds., Pickering
College re-—opened in 1892 with ninety-five enrolled., The academic and arts
programs were excellent and the school was well run with William Firth and
Ella Rogers as principals of the boys'! and girls!'! divisions respectively.
William Firth, a convinced Friend, was from Yorkshire; Ella Rogers . was the
capable University of Toronto-trained daughter of Samuel Rogers. They shared
responsibilities well and two years later married, The life-long service
they gave was important to Pickering and is commemorated by Firth House on
the Néwmarket campus,

At last Pickering College was functioning at full capacity —~ but disaster
struck when the main building burned to the ground during Christmas vacation
on December 31, 1905, The only school building remaining there today is the
gymn given by Samuel Rogers in 1899, until recently used as a private home,
Recovering from the blow of the fire, the rebuilding decision came quickly,
but again the site was changed. Friends chose Newmarket, thirty miles north
of Toronto, where essential utilities, easy communication, and stronger support
of Orthodox meetings existed,

This time Samuel's son, Albert S, Rogers, travelled on behalf of the
school. Finally contributions of $90,000, the total cost of the new
building and its furnishings, permitted the school to open in 1909,

William and Ella Rogers Firth again led the school from their strength and




wisdom. énce more the dream of a school was realized... and, again, it was
short-lived, | |

During the World War I era, when m@ny,poarﬁing schools finally closed
their doors as public secondary education increased, a new challenge came
to Canadian Friends. Many veterans shatterad emotionally by the ravages of
war needed special hospitals on a long term basis, So Friends donated the
use of Pickering College's buildings and beautif@;maetting as & hospital until
the government could erect permanent centres. k'

The Canadian government returned the achooi to its trustees in 1920 and
plans for a new phase of Quaker education moved forward. Vﬁihada Yearly Meeting
had requested a special legislative act in 1917 to ereate a private corporation
of Friends and others, for the holding and oversight of Pickering College.
They planned a boys' school with preparation for university and professional
training as the major emphasis.

Joseph McCulley, leading a fine staff of seven teachers, began the new
venture of progressive education in the 'great experiment' in 1927, with
sixty-six boys. Their lives still attest its success. Pickerinz continued
to be based on the Quaker ideals of education which believes in the individual
worth of each student growing toward disciplined excellence in a loving, but fimm,
community. Although not a member of the Society of Friends, Josesph McCulley's
mark on Quaker education's contributlion to the larger field of Canadian education
is significant, His death, in February of 1977, evoked responses of deep
appreciation for his vision and leadership during his twenty years as head
master of Pickering College. During his latter years the scope of Pickering's
outreach increased as muany students were war guests. This international focus
continues, His care for the school was life-long, even as he burauad later
careers.  The pattern of Pickering education which Joe McCulley carefully
established in 1927 continues in the present,

From 1947 to 1953 hobert E,K, Rourke, formerly s teacher in the school, -

became headmaster, With a particular love for mathemstics and the discipline




this involves, he emphasized the pursuit of academic excellence, Hie erag

also saw increased interest in the art and music dimensions of Pickering.life,

The former focus on athletics and good sportsmanship continued,

In 1953 when Robert Rourke left to pursue math teaching and text-book
writing more fully, Harry M., Beer his assistant became head of the school.
Ably supported by his wife, Elizabeth Holmeg Beer, who was a student in 1927,
Harry Beer has carried the school through more than two decades of tempsstuous
educational times seeking to maintain Pickering's particular approaches to
the whole education of youth., Within, the established philosophical and
practical framework the school is the same, even as it is growing and changing.
He is a practical idealist in the truest sense, The use of the loving imperative
which he applies so well has/si§2rumental to Pickering, through his years here.
Harry M, Beer's years of service, also give examples of physical growth as

additions to the schocl plant and upgrading of existing facilities required

continued efforts in planning, funding and implementation.

The present plant, now undergoing new planning for future axpansion and
service, includes: Rogers House, bullt in 1909 and since renovated and renamed;
The Memorial Field and gymnasium attached ﬁn ths aouth end of Rogers in 1927
supported the athletic progzram for the phy!ical and social davelopmant ef the
boys; Firth House, built in 1931, ’dhich pBMtM mtural expansion later
of the preparatory department, was txpan@gﬁ»byrtwo«wings in the 1960's to
add infirmary, classrooms and additionaiiéurmitpzy space; In 1967 the beautiful
new dining room and kitchen building was.added t;é"th. north of aaﬁﬁva, whieh it
joined by a covered walkway, The art callectian hanging on the Dining Hall
walls also enhances that important facet Df SBHQOI Ufs. In 1971 the indoor
hockey rink, with tennis courts in alternate salﬁona, was built near thﬁ orchard.
Other major renovations of library, student and staff lounges, art and drsﬁa
space, of labs and classrooms, and domitory re#ident rooms all'hava coﬁtinued

in recent years, Constant effort is required té maintain a good living




atmosohere and also to meet changing needs for the whole school community.
Further we note that boys are not the 'lightest! users of any areal

In the school year just closed, 1976/77 there were attending Pickering
College more than 170 bovs from grades six through thirteen representing
seventeen countries. The teaching staff of seventeen and the large supporting
staff tending the plant, campus and farm testify to the practical idealism
that must always be in action.

After the coming yesr, the present assistant headmaster, Sheldon H. Clark,
who first came to Pickering in 1972 as an English drama teacher, has been
asked to take the reins as headmaster. This Friend, of broad experience,
along with his wife, Sherita, should continue the line of Quaker education
on the hilltop with right vision for the new years to come,

The Board of Magnagement in its composition has continued long ties to
the past history of the school built on land first granted tc Timothy Rogers,
both at Newmarket and Pickering Village., Allan D, Rogers is now chairman,
continuiné the fcur geperations of aective support which have meant generous,
cftenkaacrificial, giving of time, talents, and financial gifta. This
family has been instrumental in interesting others to give support. Their
care for the type of education to be given, the concern for staff and
oversight for details in the running c:-the school came out in the
correspondence between Joseph McCulley and A. S. Rogers before the 1927 re-
epening. - |

Many chapters of Pickering history could be written of the alumni who
have served the College, the Society of Friends, and the broader:world, well,
Arthur G. Dorland is one who stands out as former student, teacher, member
of the corporation, author of her history, and 1ife time supporter of the.
school., Apain we see the long line of‘genarationp in a family continuing
the involvement., Many leaders have come out of tpg student ranks over the

years, The 0ld Boys Association today continuesJita care and support for the

school.
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Study of Quauker institutions, especially the schools, makes one thankful
for their service and existence. Research of Pickering's history has allowed
increased awareness of what it means to have a school, Pickering, which survived
in spite of preat obstacles, becguse of the many individuals - teachers, staff,
committee - who gave of their lives and resources in this service., The story
with variations has been repeated in other Friends schools.

Pickering College exists today, growing and changing, as all entities
must, alive in the best sense. The gchool holds to its Quaker ideals
believ 1np in each student's individual worth, in the potential for developing
his own excellence, in the expectation of evoking his sensitivity and basic
goodnecse, and in training him for service to his fellow human beings.

As Pickering College enters a new half-century of her present life~
stage in the 'great experiment?! of whole education for body, mind, heart,
and =oull, may all those responsible continue to dream with vision, find energy
and tenacity for the rehewed effort, and keep faith in the future, All that is

past is, indeed, prclogue,
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OGTLINE OF HISTORY OF QUAKERISM IN PICKERING, ONTARIO.

by Kathleen Hertsbergﬁ

Timothy Rogers was the firat Quaker settler in Pickering Townahip.
He was bern im 1756 in Connecticut in U. S.and died in Pickering in 1827.
Apparently he joined tbe Society of Friends &f%cr hie marriage to Sarah Wite,
daughter of & Baptist. The 20 Quaker families who came with him {Collins,
Wrights, Betts, Chapman, Brown, Haight ptc.} Qoro apongst the earliest settliers
in Pickering, He had already travelled in Quebec and Nova Scotia before ooming
to Upper Canada. He was & pioneer of fuo important settlements, having first
obtained a grant of 40 farme in the Newmarket area im 1801 before settling in
Pickering in 1807, He bought an 800 acre farm for $2. per aore on lots 13 & 1k
on the first and second concessions in'Pickaxing. The property was on Duffins
Croek at Kingston Road (three miles up!t&vam from iak» (ntarie) where he built

* Kathleen Hertzberg is the present Clerk of Toronto Monthly Meeting and ‘resides
in Plckering.
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the first grist and saw aill io the Tewnship. It is of environmental interest

to us today that the mill daws prevented the salmopwhich abounded im Duffine Creek
from going up stream to spawn with the result that in a& few years they had
practically vanished. The mill site was still in use until the fire of 1956 (close
to the 401 overpass and CNR bridge). Tne year after his arrival there were 180
people in Pickering. These early pioneers bad to c¢lear the ferest to ereate their
farus and fell the trees for their first homes,

By 1820 immigrants were arriving from the British Isles, including aome Irish
Juaker families, such as the Richardsonz, Valentines, Dales etc. encouraged by
Timothy Rogers.

The Quakers forwed the first congregation in the Township, meeting in the bowe
of Timothy Rogers and also in John Haight's home in 1810, as an/ﬁiiow;d Meeting of
Yonge Street Monthly Meeting. By 1842 when the population in Pickering had
reached 3,450, Quakers comprised 7.l1% of the populatién. The historian Leo E,
Johnson states, “the setilers found themselves almost totally neglected by the
established churches, only the Quakers and the Mennonites, whose religion was
based on the lay ministry, were capable of the full enjoyment of their falth".

Timothy Rogere had a dream. His dream was to make the Pickering settlement
a Yearly Meeting centre of (uakers in Canada., Hia dreax did come true
for a few years but, as we shall see, not perhaps im the way in whioch he
hud envisaged, His son, Wing Rogers, wrote in his journal:

"My dear father had prospects of a Yearly Moeting in Canadaj he used

to tell his children and friends that it would be located in Pickering

60 years befora it was granted",

In 1828, 21 years after the arrival of the firet Quaker settlers, came
the Separation of 1828. The Meeting in Pickering was visited by Thoa.
Shillitoe, a Friend from Zondon Yearly Meeting travelling in the ministry.
In his Journal, Shillitoe comments:

"the tardiness of members in gathering (for worship), the bariking of

dogs during Meeting:; infants runming about the Meeting House in this
wildernesa part of the country", |

THNN N o o
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The first break amongst the Meetings iun Cavads as a result of the
Separation of 1828 occurred in Pickering. On 8th month 1828, tho/P“éker:ug
Preparative Meeting divided on the Minute of Advice and Direction issued by
the Orthodox Branch of New Yerk Yearly Medéﬁg;' of 'llhich Picksring Meetins‘,
ag part of )?énge Street Monthly Meetlng, was a cowtituwt Preparative Mesting,
The clerk at the time was Nicholas Anstin. a Hioka:&tt aywpa.tbiser, who ro:t.’naed
to accept the authority of that Minute. % members who did support the
Minute became the "QOrthecdox" group and they @Wﬁtd William Wright as their
own clerk. It was Nicholas Brown, a memb& of E‘iehring Preparative Meeting and
a wminister of Yonge Street Monthly Heetiné whao lm! Just a few months earlier
played an important part in the 1828 a&pardion (am a Hicksite auppoftu?)
in f~f\‘/;w York Yearly Meeting. It would"aoelf ﬁha‘h the Quakers at this time did
not exercise the good Quaker principle of w.'mg a matter over when wnity
could not be reachedl. o |

The Pickering Orthodox group diamcﬁ)&ohohn Austin and 15 o'utstandins
Hickoite rriends. Howovor; those Orthodox’ Friem cculd not get into the
%oting House (Mill St./Kingaton Road}. am mhaha Brwa was_ the nmtnm.

They hnd to hold thoir mootings in the "nehmlhm on Frieads! mt ).ot
near Timothy Hogers'. Lventually the: m m»dn regained this)(‘oﬁug

House in 1829. The Ilicksite Friends acv

. k,m greperty two miles further east

along the mnin Kingston Road, whert thﬂ: ‘built a “ggod brﬁ.ck )601‘.1.1:‘ House" (circa
x834), (on north side of Kingston j a,;‘..le tut of Ajax traffic light; at

the present day, only the )i{ckaitc w m& Fomains, accessible by-a "right
of way along &ide the Rodari Kennm}. mn uoc’d.ng House atood to the eabt of

the Kennels. It was struck by ):Lghteni.ng aad &a!trbyod in 18?6- It was replaced
by onother brick building which was ltill lta.ndinc :Ln the 1920ties. ‘M the Hickaite
Friends in Fickering and in Uxbridge doclimd in nmbara, )’.;’anadu Half Yearly Meeting
of Genesee Yearly Meeting (Hicksite), re-orsaniua Pickenng and/t&hridgo intoe

P P:).cxering Monthly Meeting after 1828. Im 1886 thoy becane _Piokering Executive
Me?tlng This branch of the Society in Pickering, as in Uxbridge, ceased to exist

about 19260
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Thus, two branches of the Society lived, worshipped and worked in Pickering
down to the second Separation in 188l. In the intervening period, the dreas of
Timothy Rogers , who had been dead already 40 years, came true, when the Orthodox
Branch held their first Yearly Meeting in 1867 in Pickering. _Canada Yearly Meeting
(Orthodox) was established by New York Yearly Meeting of Orthodox Friemds. Om 28th
day of 6th wontnh 1867 this historical event took place in the large newly remodelled

/%ill Street Meeting House (“on part of my'fa&hst&s ¢ld farw on the same ground
that he (Timothy Rogers) gave to the Society many years before his death for the
use of a Keeting House and burial ground'), (Hins Rogers' Journal)e Actually prior
to the Separation of 1828, which Timothy Rogers d&id not live to see, New York Yearly
¥eeting had been considering setting up a Yearly Meeting in Canada called "Ontario
Yearly Meeting'.

Alma Dale (an interesting and intrepid weman Friend who later did service as a
Travelling Friend amongst the new Quaker settlements in western Canada on horseback),
writes of the Yearly Meeting of 1867 during one session "ot a sound was heard, as
the spirit of silent worship had settled over the people', William Wetherald,

a well-known minister amongst Orthodox Fr;ands and founder of thefﬁéékwood
Academy, addressed the Yaérly Meeting., The first clerk was Adam Spencer. As
this historical occasion for Friends in Canada, took place in the same Jesxr as
the founding of the Dominion of Canada, the fenrly Meeting issued an address
expresaing loyalty to‘the Queen and to the new Fadaral’ﬂovernment of Canada, whilst
re~affirming Friends'ancient position on war and caths. The Yearly Meeting used
tte Discipline of New York Yearly Hseting‘(ofthodsx) of 1859, which, during its
revision in 1880, became one of the causes otﬂtht»l;cond Separation amongst Friends
in 1881 which produced three branches of,Qﬁikirith in Canada.

The Orthodox Friends held the Mill Strest Mesting Houss until the second
Separation of 1881, It is interesting to note that the mctual Deed of this Meeting
fouse shows that it was conveyed over the years as follows =
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30;16
1795 = Crown to John Smith. ,
1807 « David Wm. Smith to Timothy Rogers. Deed Noo 896.
1847 - Jenatban Rogers to Richardson et al. {(Trustees of }{ckering
Monthly Meeting (Orthodox), Deed No. 29822,
1868 - Robert Richardson (for Trustees of Pickering Monthly Meeting (Orth.)
to James Richardson et ale. for the Trusteos of /eéméa Yearly
Meeting (Ortbodox). Deed No. 607,
18690 =~ William and Sarah hardson to James Richardson et al.
Trustees of Canada Yearly Meeting (Conservative).
Deed No. 726k,
1943 ~ Annie Elizabeth Richardsen, Elmer Starr, Maurice Pollard,
Trustees of Canada Yearly Meeting (Conservative)
to Masons (Doric Lodge 424). Deed No. 23739

(parts of the Meeting House land were subsequentl sold
by the Masons for building lotsle

The 1881 Separation was another historical and tragic roasion for* Quakq;ian
ig Canada « , It produced yet a third and separate branch of ’t.ho Socliety ~ thi
Conservative Friends. In Pickering the Conservative Friends occupied and claimed
the Mill Street Meeting House as their property, though in faot at the t:l-ut the
Mvoting House was logally owned by Canada Yearly Meot‘ins (Orthodox). |

After 1881, Canada Yearly Meeting (Orthedox) continued to hold,Ya&riy Meeting
in 1682, 3.883 and 188# at Pickering College (which thoy owned), holdiag sone of
their buainaaa aesaiona in a small Meeting House (nw a Guf O:D. ‘astation) at. ‘?5
iingston Road (part lot No.l. plan 205) and some in- W Rethodist Church« Gcrtmdo
iicholson, (daughter of a Norwich Friend) on a visit fmm England, Mﬂm

in her diamry Canada Yearly Meeting (Orthodox) held :Ln ';896. She ﬁ.vea some
quite revealing and amusing '"thumb-nail' sketéhaﬁ cf "'Friends present in describing |
tieir appearance, conduot and peraonal characteriatiﬁi, 8.8
"Alma Dale, who is a little lady with short Mr and drosaes rather
mannishly .... i8 a very lively and splendid speaker and tells all
sorts of amusing stories .... &he is a great hand in managing horses..
The Epistle from London Yearly Meeting was read and everyone sesmed
pleased with it .... ‘'Willism Wetherald speaks at good length oan
every subject goingV.
The Orthodox Branch of Friends in North h‘ﬁu was the only one recognised
by Léndon Yearly Meeting. E |
The Orthodox Friends were active in edueatim i.n Canada. A Friends'
Seminary was established in Picker&ng in 1878, an mount ot whioh appears in

Lue current issue of this Newsletter. Whilst still m Pickerins, it was deatroyod

R st~ o e
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by fire in 1905. Only the large brick gym with stables and pumping house were
saved and are standing today. Tor a number of years it was the private home of
the Ruddy family. It now stands empty and the objéct of increasing vandaliam,
it is owned by tbho Runnymoie Construction Co.

Ortbodox Friends in Pickering supperted the missionary work of this branch
of the Society in U.S. and Canadae Pickering Friends'first interest was im work
in Mexico. The first Quaker missionary to Japan was a Pickering Friend, William
Y. Wright, uhp died in Japan after two year's service. Peace, disarmament and
the conditions of Indians jin Cangda continued as concerns of all three branches
in Canada.

In assessing the contribution of organised Quakerism to the developwent
¢f Pickering, both Johnason in his recent"ﬂistory of the County of Ontario' and
FoKay dn "The Pickering Story" indicate that the early Quaker settlers made vital
cultural contributions to the developing community by "thelr strong feeling of
dependence on God, their civilised pacifism, long tradition of durable honesty
and civil speech", *

ks long as Quakers continued in & closely-knit way of life with a felt
and experienced "centre'' and a clear and unified organisation, to which
ull Friends were faithful, the Meetings held together., The Separations
did reduce their spiritual strength and numbers in time and laid unnecessary
burdens of property and administration an the three separate branches. All thase
howaver, were not the only reasons for the fotal decline of the organised Society
of Friends in the Pickering area. *

It is of value to modern Friends to note that Samuel Bettle, clerk of
/Pﬁiladelphia Yearly Meeting, who &ided with the Orthbénx Friends in 1828,
publically stated that "he believed patient labour and suffering would have besn
better than division',

P _

The/ﬁfll Street/Kingston Road Meating House, then owned by Canada Yearly

Meoting (Conservative was the last of the Pickering Meeting Houses and property

to be disposed of by Friends. On Monday, December 2lst. 1942, it was put wp for
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auction by the Trustees (subject to a reserve bid). It was purchased by the Magons
{Doric Lodge 424 of Pickering) for the sum of $2,000 and is still in use today by
w ilourishing Masonic lodge. In 1953, when the present writer settled in Pickering,
there were two elderly women Frieuds as sole survivors of 146 years of Quakerisa
in Pickering. There are still a number of families whose forebearers were Friends,
One of the trustees writing after the sale in 1942, says:
11t was with a feeling of sadness that I left that big Meeting House ...
s0 filled with memories of the past and the dear Friends gone to their
reward. Again I question... Why has our belovaed Society been reduced
to this point and this sad condition?',
The Friend answers with the closing sentence:
"We should not be too dismayed with the present or future outlook, for

the same God is overall which has alwaye been and will now as always
care for those who put their trust in Him',

At the present time, there are two Quaker families in Pickering and
another interested family who meet with other Friends for the study of Quakerism

and for worship together once a month. The two Qunkar fanilies are active members

of Teronto Monthly Meeting.

Refs. and further reading: "The Quakers. A History in Canada'. A.G. Dorland.
"The Pickering Story, Wm. As McKay.
vHistory of Outario County''s L,A. Johnaon,

Deeds in Whitby Registry Office. TLetters,

THREE. QUFKFR CERTERIES OF THE PICKERING/UXBRIDGE AREA
by William K., Britnells

//QTFNUC CEMETERY, PICKFRING (Orthodox, 1ater Conservntivo)

This cenetery located on Mill Straet at the eastern edge of the Village
of Pickering, is one of the cldest cemeteries in Pickering Township. Early
information concerning this burial ground is tq be found, rather strangely,
in the will of Timothy Rogers, who owned the farm upon wpich the cemetery is located.
Tn his wil! (dated 1829 and probated in lth) Timothy Rogers pentions the burisl

ecround on lot 1L in the lst concession of Pickering Township, 30 or LO rods from

a "n’ 1" Britnell a member of our associatlion, and of Newmarket Quaker ancestry

ar } 55‘”§%<§°r his extensive and accurate knowledge of Quaker graves in this
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reds from Duffint's Creek. Timothy Rogers goes on to state in his will that
buried in the cemetery are his wife Sarah, his daughter Sarah, his sons
John “ilde Rerers and John Elmsly Rogers, John A, Haight's first wife Mary
tand others™. Tt is known that the three Rogers children mentioned above died
in a great epidemic in 1809, and that his wife died in 1812, showing that this
is indeed an early cemetery.

As is the case with most early cemeteries, most of the early burials are
not marked by the presence of gravestones. There are no markers for any of the
persone mentioned by Timothy Rogers as being buried here, nor is there any marker
for Timothy Rogers himself, which is rather sad since he did more than any other
person to help establish the Society of Friends in Ontario. The earliest date
found on any of the gravestones is 1830, when several members of the-Betts family
died. The majority of the gravestones are dated from the 1850's through to the
1900ts,

| There ére about 100 surnames mentioned on the gravestenes. The surnames which
occur’most frequentlyvare: Betts, Boone, Bostwick, Chapman, Churchill, Cocrnell,
Dale; Haight, Hartrick,uHughes, Powell, Reazin, Richardson, Rogers, Taylor,
Valentine, Wetherald, %illson, Woodruff and Wright.

While visitine the Friends Cemetery, not to be neglected is the small Pioneer
Cemetery which adioins it to the SOuchaiHe, where many of Pickering*s non~Quaker -
pioneers are buried. The gravestones*BQVe been collected into a mound in the centre
of the grounds, just north of the fire-hall. Found here are the surnames Hatrick,
Mathews, McCullough, Tate, Taylor and Took, as well as several members of the
Post family. Tt is interesting to note ﬁhlt William Hartrick Sr. (1778-1857) is
buried here, while his son William, J». (iBOBQLB?h) is in the adjoining Friends

Cemetery.

# Jim Adamson, Chairman of the Pickering Friends Cemetery Committee reports that
a preject 1s going on this summer to tidy up the stones including the resetting
of some. : ,




FLIiNDS CEMETIRY, PICKERING (HMicksite)

/

This cemetery is locateé on the north side of Highway 2, about 2 miles east
of the Orthodax Friends' Cemetery. It is just off the highway, with the property
in front presently being occupied by 3 dog-kennel, thus making the cemetery rather
difficult to locate when driving by. Naturally, this cemetery is not as old as the
Orthodox cemetery, since it was not established until after the Separation of 1828,
at which time the Hicksite faction in Pickering and Whitby was forced to build their
own meetin--house and start their own cemetery. This is a very typical early Friends'
cemetery, with its neat rows of small, white, plain headstones, a mesrked contrast to
other non-Quaker cemeteries of the period, in which the gravestones are much bigger
and more elaborate.

The most striking ssvect of this cemetery is that, of just over 100 gravestones
in the cemetery; well over half of them belong to just one family, the Browns. Of the
7 brothers who came from Vermont during the early 1800's, 5 of them are buried here:
Hicholas (1?85«18:38)\. Abrahém (1791-1840), Sylvanus (1796-1895), Rowland (1°04-1£78)
and James, who died during the 1840's /for whom there is no gravestone.. Another
of the brothers, Joseph, removed to the Wast Lake onthly Meeting, and the last
brother, Ira (1802-1286) died in Chio. These brotbefs, their wives and descendants
account for the great majority of the persons buried here.

Other surnsmes prominent on tha grave;fbnes are: Austin, Carpenter, Cochrane,
Lynde, Orvis and Webster. Except for the Websters (who came from Pennsylvania) these

others, like the Browns, all came to Ontario from Vermont.

PAILHDS CEMETERY, UABRINGE
This is cemetery is located across the rosd rromvthe/ﬁégting~house west of
the Town of Uxbridge, at a location long known as Quaker Hil1l. ZEven persons huried
in the Fresbyterian Cemetery up ths road are\ssid to‘be buried on Quaker Hill.
Thiz is another very early cemetery, probably, or almost certainly, the oddest

cemelery in Uxbridge Township. The grounds were obtained in a transaction dated

the 25th of 9th month 1£09, at which time 2 seres of land on lot 29 of the 6th
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concassion were deeded by the owner, Robert Willson, to a committee of friends
neaded by his father-in-law, Charles Chapman. The grounds are still being used,
although burials now are very infrequent, the last being about 1968.

4s is the case with Pickering, most of the early burials here are unmarked.
The esrliest dates on the headstones are for two infant James children who died
in 1812 and 1815, but these stones were most likely erected at a much later date,
4 counle of stones date from the 1830's, but the majority of stones are dated from
the 1950's onward. The cemetery was evidentally retained by the Hicksite Friends
after the sevaration, as most of the burials after 1828 are for families who belonged
to the Hicksite faction.

The first thing likely to catch the eye of the visitor to this cemetery is sure
to be the larze and rather ornate monumant_to Josenh Gould (1808~1886>,“§hich looks
rather out-of<lace in a Juaker cemetery. There are, in all, idst over 200 gravestones,
With over 100 surnames found on them. The most frequent surnames are: Allcock, Ball,
Sarber, Bell, Blodzett, Chavman, TGould, Hambleton, Hilborn, James, Jones Moore,
Flank, Stoner, ﬁebstef, Widdifield and 7ilson. Descendants of many of these pioneer

~uaker families are buried in the large Uxbridge Cemetery at the adge of the town.

NOTE: With a postal strike threatening, and Yearly Meseting fszst approaching we
thought it wise to get what material we had ready into your hands as soon as
possible. We hope to have an account of the recent workshop on Quaker genealogy
which took place at Richmond, Indiana, and a bibliogrphy of library materials

on the Nxbridge/Pickering area in a forthcoming issue,




